SM-12 1799, 1884
St. George’s Protestant Episcopal Church (Poplar Hill)
McKays Beach Road (MD 244)
Valley Lee
Private

The existing St. George's Protestant Episcopal Church was built in 1799
and it is the fourth to serve the William and Mary Parish. Of the three buildings
which preceded the present structure two were built on this same site, one about
1692 and another about 1760; the original, c. 1638-1642 structure, stood about
50' north. A pleasing example of rural Southern Maryland, late-18th century
ecclesiastical architecture, the recently restored church is attractively situated
within the boundaries of an old interesting cemetery. Both the cemetery and
church are shaded by numerous large oak trees--several of these predating the
first building. St. George's is a one-story, rectangular, gable-front, Flemish bond
brick structure, five bays in length at both side elevations. The facade is at the
west end and is three bays in width. The entrance consists of a central double
door, which is flanked by rectangular stained glass windows. A bullseye window
pierces the gable above the door. All of the exterior detail, including the molded
architraves and denticulated eave cornices, appear to be a combination of 1884
and 1958 replacements of the originals. However, the window frames
themselves may be original. All windows are rectangular, and filled with
elaborate stained glass in a geometric lancet pattern. The only alteration to the
exterior appears to be the filling in of a centered door on both side elevations

and the introduction of sash windows in their place. Covering the eastern two

bays of the south facade is a one-story shed-roofed partially enclosed brick
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covered walkway. On the interior, box pews feature paneled ends, and the
octagonal pulpit is also paneled. The altar area is enclosed by a balustrade. The
roof of the nave is barrel vaulted, supported by Doric columns. The pews appear
to be the only interior finishes remaining from the 1799 church. The remainder of
the interior has been restored to its 1884 appearance. The church is surrounded
by a graveyard, enclosed by a low brick wall.

Although the interior of St. George's has been extensively altered from its
original appearance, the exterior remains largely the same. The aesthetically
pleasing setting of this charming building draws numerous visitors to this site
throughout the year and it is perhaps one of the best known Protestant churches
in Southern Maryland. When first established in Poplar Hill Hundred, lay readers
conducted the weekly services. In 1650 the Reverend William Wilkinson
became the first rector; it is reputed that Wilkinson was, in fact, the first Anglican
minister in Maryland. Although another Anglican church was erected for Poplar
Hill Hundred about two years before the first church at this site, its location was
inconvenient to many parishioners and it was soon moved to St. Mary's City. It is
therefore generally believed that St. George's is the site of the oldest Anglican

church in Maryland whose parish is still in existence.




S M-12

ST. GEORGE'S EPISCOPAL CHURCH 1799
Valley Lee

St. George's Rpiscopal Church (Poplar Hill) is

the second church built on the site. The parish, William and Mary, was

founded in 1638 and is one of the oldest in Maryland.
The church is a one-story brick structrue with an
entrance on the gable end. (The central windows on
either side were originally doors J In 1884 the parish
added stained gléss windows and removed the gallery

and pulpit. /;; all other 18th century Anglican
churches still standing in St. Mary's County, the
interior is distinguished by columns which define a
nave and flanking aisles in imitation of stylish

English churches of the day.

Cf particular interest on the interior is the
Latin-inscribed tombstone of the Reverend Francis
Sourton who died in 1679. When the building was
restored recently, the tombstone was transferred from
its original location and set into the floor of the
south side. One of the most memorable features of
the church is its picturesque setting in a wooded

cemetery.

This property has been included on the National
Register of Historic Places, U.S. Department of the

Interionr.
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- St. George's Church (Poplar Hill) is situated on the south side
of Maryland Route 244, 1/2 mile from the intersection of Mary-
land Routes 244 and 249 at Valley Lee.

The existing St. George's church was built in 1799 and it is
the fourth to serve the William and Mary Parish. Of the three
buildings which preceeded the present structure two were built
on this same site, one about 1692 and another about 1760; the
original, circa 1638-1642 structure, ‘stood about fifty feet
~north.

A pleasing example of rural Southern Maryland, late eighteenth

|

icentury ecclesiastical architecture, the recently restored
| church is attractively situated within the boundaries of an old
i interesting cemetery. Both the cemetery and church are shaded |
| by numerous large oak trees--several of these predating the

;first building.

;St George's is a rectangular, gable roofed, Flemish bond brick
'structure, five bays in length at both side elevations. The
 facade is at the west end and. is three bays in width. All of
‘the exterior detail, including the molded architraves and den-
ticulated eave cornices, appear to be a combination of late
nineteenth century and restoration period (1958) replacements

| of the originals. However, the window frames themselves may be
original.. The only alteration to the exterior appears to be
the filling in of a centered door on both side elevations and
the introduction of sash windows in their place.

The vestry records of the church document major-renovations to
the interior in 1884. 1Initially the floor plan involved two
side aisles as well as a centered cross aisle. At the rear,
west end, of the church was a slave gallery ascended by a sin-
gle stair in the southwest corner of the first floor level. 1In
1884 the two exterior doors affording access to the cross aisle
were removed and, as previously stated, .windows were installed
in their place. The gallery and stair were removed, as'was the
pulpit, communion table, pew doors, and apparently the floors,
as well as,most of the irterior moldings. At this time a new
vestry room was built on the east end and pigtorial stained ‘
glass windows installed in place of the original, double hung
sash.

In 1958 the building had deteriorated to such an extent that
'most of the interior work had to be replaced. With the excep- !
‘tlon of replacing the wood floor with brick, the interior:-has !
'b een largely restored to its 1884 appearance. The old peWs are‘
|

‘a that remain from the 1799 interior. It was also in 1958
hat the 1884 vestry room was removed and replaced by a more
substantial wing containing the sacrlstry

(See continuation sheet #1) . ... . R
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1. STATE Ma.ryland
cowntySte Mary's County
Tovn Valley Lee vicnity

STREET NC.

oricinaL owner William & Mary Parish
oricinaL use Episcopal Church
PresenT owner William & Mary Parish
PRmENTuseEpiscopalkChurch

wALL CONSTRUCTION Brdic
NO. OF sTorIEs On@

HISTORIC AMERICAN BUILDINGS SURVEY

INVENTORY SM=-12

2. name Ste George's Spiscopal Church

DATE OR PERIOD 1799
strie 18th Century
ARCHITECT

BUILDER

3. FOR LIBRARY OF CONGRESS USE

4. NOTABLE FEATURES, HISTORICAL SIGNIFICANCE AND DESCRIPTION

OPEN 70 PUBLIC 308

The first St. George's Church, known as "Poplar Hill“*i;:e
¥y

built some time between 1638 and 1642,

It stood about

feet to the northward of the present church and ite position
was, in all probability, determined by the location of the
two great oaks which stood on either side of the entrance.

lay readers conducted services from the establishment of
this church until 1650 when the Reverend William Wilkinson
arrived to become the first Anglican minister on the Festern

Shore of Maryland,

In all, forty-three ministers have served

ag rectors of this parish; fourteen of whom are buried in

the churchyard,

We know that the present St, George's was built in 1799

while the Reverend Charles Smoot was rector.

xtensive

alterations were made to this church in 1884, at which time
the slave gallery and pujpit were removed, the side doors

were bricked up, and the stained glase windows

(which were

probably obtained from a Baptist Church in Philadelphia)

were installed,

Renovation of the Church was effected in 1958 and the

sacristy added at that time,

(continued on page 2)
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Helen West Ridgely, 1894, The U. S. Navy (Ret.)
b 4 Jubilee Farm

01d Brick churggil o §%§¥IEEH
) 8 O

the vinces

Leonardtown, Maryland
March 25, 1968

DATE OF RECCRD
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During the renovation, four ancient stones were placed in
the newly installed brick floor, Three of these lay in the
floor of the original church. The fourth is that of the
Reverend Charles Smoot, A description of each of these stones
can be seén on a coluzm on the right aisle of the Church,
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